
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Hollingsworth Board Room, 1212 George Jenkins Blvd, Lakeland, FL 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 14th, 2024, at 8:30 a.m. 

 
 

 
 

   

  
 
Call to Order           Action Required 

 
 

1. Approval of the January LAMTD Meeting  Approval 
 

2. Award Presentation  None 
 

3. GEM Award, Paul Simms  None 
 

4. Public Comments         None 
 

5. Board Elections         Approval 
 
6. Finance / Mark Biddinger, Chief Financial Officer   

a. LAMTD Financials        None 
b. PCTS Financials        None 
c. TD Financials         None 
d. Project Manager for Intermodal project     None 
e. Project Updates        None 
f. Procurement Policy Revisions      None 

 
7. Legal / Ben Darby, Esq 

a. Universal Access Service Agreement, New Beginning High School Approval 
 
8. Planning & Operations / Nicole McCleary & Paul Simms, Directors 

a. Tiger Town Express Service  Approval 
 
9. Marcia Roberson 

a. Special guest from the Commission for the CTD  None 
 
10. General Manager Report / Tom Phillips 

a. Agency Update(s)  None 
               

11.  Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips       
a. January Calendar        None 
b. Ridership and UAP Update                                                  None   

                      
12. Other Business  TBD        

                                                                            
Adjournment 

1



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #1 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Approval of the LAMTD Meeting Minutes for January 2024 
 
Presenter: Ella Joseph 
 
Policy Analysis: TA 6 Increase internal communication through systemic 

processes. 
  
Recommended  
Action: Board approval of the LAMTD Meeting Minutes for January 

2024 
    

 
Attachments:  January 10th, 2024 LAMTD Meeting Minutes 
   
  
  
 
 
  
   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 

2



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #2 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: MLK Awards 
 
 
Presenter: Sara Roberts McCarley, Chair 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: None  
  

 
Summary: MLK Parade Award Presentation   
 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 
 

3



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #3 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: GEM Award 
 
 
Presenter: Paul Simms, Director of Operations 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: None  
  

 
Summary: GEM Award 
 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 
 

4



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024  
AGENDA ITEM #5 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Election of Board Member Positions 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips 
 
Recommended  
Action: Approve to open the floor for nominations and 

subsequent votes for Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary.  
 
 
Summary: Part of the annual election of our board members to decide 

who will be the next Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary. 

5



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #6a 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: FY2023-24 
 LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 
 For the period ending December 31, 2023  
 
Presenter: Mark Biddinger, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended   
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
district’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
YTD December 31, 2023 

FY 2023-2024 
(10/01/23 – 09/30/24) 

 
25% of the fiscal year complete 

YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent 
Expended 

Revenue $14,351,547 $7,238,062 50% 
Expense $14,351,547 $2,994,104 21% 
Surplus/(deficit)                               -                        $4,243,958   

 
 
Revenue Highlights: 
 
Ad valorem taxes:  The majority have receipts will be recognized as of December 2023 (~ 85%) with the remainder 
coming in monthly for the rest of the fiscal year. 
 
The billing cycles for the FTA and FDOT grants have now started. These grants are paid out retrospectively after 
expenses are incurred each quarter. 
 
Interest Income on invested funds is ahead of the budget. 
 
 
Expense highlights 
 
Overall expenses are below budget. Individual expense lines vary due to the cyclical nature of operations compared to a 
linear budget (budgets are reported on a 1/12th basis). 

 
 
CASH POSITION: 
 
As of December 31, 2023, there was ~ 229 days (7.5 months) of operating cash on hand. 
As of January 31, 2024, there was ~ 212 days (7.0 months) of operating cash on hand. 
 
 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL POSITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through December 31st, the financials reflect a favorable 
variance of $4,243 million with 25% of the fiscal year completed. 

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  9/30/2022 9/30/2021 9/30/2020 9/30/2019 9/30/2018 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio   11.40% 10.70% 8.50% 10.10% 13.00% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $141.63  $130.01  $117.66  $116.62  $108.42  
3.  Revenue Hours                                           132,260 135,115 146,700 145,405 146,597 
4.  Fuel Cost                                    $1,399,855  $878,132  $744,587  $1,093,793  $1,082,166  
5.  Ridership                                                   653,986 591,937 855,409 1,294,771 1,252,600 

 
 7



3.0 Months

25% Of Fiscal Year

Annual Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Farebox/Pass Sales 340,880$             54,046$               16%

Contract Income (UAP) 175,600$             21,642$               12%

Other Contract Revenue 247,779$             165,517$             67%

Miscellaneous Income                    25,800$               11,725$               45%

Advertising Revenue                     156,000$             26,667$               17%

Investment/Interest Income (net) 210,000$             93,874$               45%

Ad Valorem Income, net 7,090,766$          6,012,309$          85%

FDOT Operating Grant 1,806,250$          13,525$               1%

Federal Operating Grant 3,637,000$          733,644$             20%

Cost Recovery 30,000$               1,536$                 5%

SQUEEZE                                 6,000$                 1,000$                 17%

PCTS - Support Cost Reimb. 615,472$             102,578$             17%

Gain on Disposal of Asset 10,000$               -$                         0%

Total 14,351,547$        7,238,062$          50%

Annual Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Salaries 7,269,139$          1,489,395$          20%

Employee Benefits 2,584,755$          601,784$             23%

Advertising Fees 9,200$                 1,566$                 17%

Professional & Technical Services 546,700$             124,328$             23%

Contract Maintenance Services 159,800$             10,261$               6%

Other Services 94,550$               33,430$               35%

Fuel & Lubricants 820,600$             110,780$             13%

Freight 13,670$               1,331$                 10%

Repairs & Maintenance 68,700$               11,241$               16%

Materials & Supplies 1,037,300$          115,967$             11%

Utilities/Telephone 163,300$             39,360$               24%

Insurance Expense 379,400$             124,254$             33%

Dues & Subscriptions 48,660$               13,581$               28%

Education/Training/Meeting/Travel 87,970$               18,052$               21%

Service Charges 10,990$               3,483$                 32%

Office Expense 99,545$               21,916$               22%

Advertising & Promotions 31,250$               21,610$               69%

Miscellaneous Expenses 25,418$               3,425$                 13%

Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Comm 220,000$             172,654$             78%

Debt Service 680,600$             75,684$               11%

Total 14,351,547$        2,994,104$          21%

Change in Financial Position -$                         4,243,958$          

Expenses

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT
Financial Statement

FY23-24

October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

For the Period Ended DECEMBER 2023

Revenue

8



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #6b 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: FY2023-24 
 Polk County Transit Services Monthly Financial Statement 
 For the period ending December 31, 2023 
 
 
Presenter: Mark Biddinger, Chief Financial Officer 
 
  
Recommended  
Action: None  
 
   
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
district’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 
Polk County Transit Services 

Monthly Financial Report 
YTD December 31, 2023 

FY 2023-2024 
(10/01/23 – 09/30/24) 

 
25% of the fiscal year complete 

YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent 
Expended 

Revenue $10,679,408 $5,441,169 51% 
Expense $10,679,408 $2,120,321 20% 
Surplus/(deficit)                               -                        $3,320,848   

 
 
 
Revenue Highlights: 
 
Revenues exceed expenses by $3,320M because 100% of the annual county revenue has already been received. 
 
The billing cycles for the FTA and FDOT grants have not yet started. These grants are paid out retrospectively after 
expenses are incurred each quarter. 
 
 
 
Expense highlights 
 
Overall expenses are below budget. Individual expense lines vary due to the cyclical nature of operations compared to a 
linear budget (budgets are reported on a 1/12th basis). 

 
 

10



3.0 Months

25% Of Fiscal Year

Annual Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

County Match 2,399,579$                 2,399,579$              100%

County Contribution - PCTS 1,309,355$                 1,309,355$              100%

City Contribution 658,554$                    669,903$                 102%

Other Revenue Transfer Cares Funding -$                                -$                             0%

Misc Income (insurance proceeds) -$                                4,738$                     0%

Fares 49,000$                      12,250$                   25%

FDOT Block Grants:

G2371 - WHAT/ADA 704,093$                    -$                             0%

RURAL 1,342,000$                 463,072$                 35%

SUNRAIL 249,740$                    43,868$                   18%

FTA

FTA 5307 Grant 3,795,440$                 538,404$                 14%

 

Capital Contributions - County 171,647$                    -$                             0%

Total 10,679,408$               5,441,169$              51%

Annual Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Labor 5,247,949$                 954,583$                 18%

Contract 2,458,193$                 586,276$                 24%

Operating 2,973,266$                 579,462$                 19%

Capital -$                                -$                             0%

Total 10,679,408$               2,120,321$              20%

Change in Financial Position -$                         3,320,848$        

Revenue

Expenses

Polk County Contract

Financial Statement

FY23-24

October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

For the Period Ended DECEMBER 2023

11



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #6c 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: FY2023-24 
 Transportation Disadvantaged Monthly Financial Statement 
 For the period ending December 31, 2023 
 
 
Presenter: Mark Biddinger, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: None  
  

 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
district’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
 The Transportation Disadvantaged Program fiscal year is July 1 

to June 30. The funding is comprised 90% from the State and 
10% matching funds by Polk County. 

 
 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 

12



 
Transportation Disadvantaged Program 

Monthly Financial Report 
YTD December 31, 2023 

FY 2023-2024 
(07/01/23 – 06/30/24) 

 
50% of the fiscal year complete 

YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent 
Expended 

Revenue $1,461,766 $733,175 50% 
Expense $1,461,766 $722,094 49% 
Surplus/(deficit)                               -                             $11,081   

 
 
 
Refer to the detailed financial report (attached). Revenues and expenses and tracking with budget expectations. There is 
nothing unusual to report. 

 
 

13



6.0 Months

50% Of Fiscal Year

Annual 

Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

County Match 10% 146,145$             73,300$               50%

Contract Revenue 311$                    180$                    58%

Adult Day Care -$                         

FDOT Grants:

CTD Grant -Operating 1,315,310$          659,695$             50%

Total 1,461,766$          733,175$             50%

Annual 

Budget YTD Actual

Percent 

Expended

Labor 1,067,076$          $548,335 51%

Operating 394,690$             173,758$             44%

Total 1,461,766$          $722,094 49%

Change in Financial Position -$                         11,081$               

Transportation Disadvantaged

FY23-24

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

Expenses

Financial Statement

For the Period Ended DECEMBER 2023

Revenue

14



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #6d 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Project Manager for Intermodal project 
 
 
Presenter: Mark Biddinger, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: None – Information only 
  

 
Summary: Lakeland Area Mass Transit District has been tasked with 

providing project management oversight to the planned 
intermodal facility. The current estimate for this project is 
$45M. We need to finalize procuring a PD&E study this spring. 
To accomplish this task, and the work ahead over the next 
several years, LAMTD will need to hire an experienced Project 
Manager to lead the project. We are hopeful this can be done 
headcount and budget neutral in the current fiscal year, with 
funding provided in subsequent fiscal years. 

 
 

15



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #6e 

 
 
Agenda Item: Informational - Project Updates 
 
Presenter: Mark Biddinger, CFO 
 
Recommended None 
Action:   
 
Summary: This is an information update to the board outlining how 

previously approved grant funding is being spent. 
 

1. In June 2021, the District received Board approval to apply 
for capital project funding under FTA Section 5307 ARPA 
grants in the amount of $1,365,000. These funds are 
earmarked for the following projects: 

 
o $1,000,000 – Oracle Netsuite for Government. 
o $85,000 – Chevin Fleet Wave Advanced.  
o $15,000 – 800-Timeclocks. 
o $150,000 – Remix by VIA 
o $115,000 – Project contingency fund (8.4%). 

 
2. In June 2023, the District received Board approval to apply 

for capital project funding under FTA Section 5307 
CRRSAA grants in the amount of $2,000,000. These funds 
are earmarked for the Lakeland Intermodal Center Planning, 
Development, & Environment (PD&E) Study. The entire 
Intermodal project is currently estimated to be $45M. 
 

 
 
Attachments: Previously approved Board Agenda Items as reference 

16



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #6f 

 
 
Agenda Item: Procurement Policy revisions 
 
Presenter: Mark Biddinger, CFO 
 
Recommended Approval of the Procurement Policy revisions 
Action:   
 
Summary: The District’s Procurement Department seeks approval of the 

below noted edits to it Policies. Saids revisions are 
recommended due to the restructuring of the department  

 
The last policy update was approved by the Board in November 
2019. At that time the Procurement Policies Manual was 10 
years old.  
 
Though the procurement regulations and requirements have not 
changed, we seek to update the thresholds for award approval, 
found under section 3.1, as outlined in the side-by-side 
comparison.  The complete document is available upon request. 
 
 
 
 

17



AGENDA ITEM # – CONT. 
 

3.0          APPROVAL OF AWARDS, DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

2019 Policy   2024 Policy Revision Change 

The District’s Board of Directors shall award all 
contracts greater than $50,000. 

The District’s Board of Directors shall be made aware 
of and/or authorize all contracts greater than 
$50,000, with signature authority delegated to the 
District’s Executive Director/General Manager. 

 
Added the phrase “shall be made aware of” 

The District’s Executive Director shall have the 
authority to award contracts up to $50,000. 

          
                    This reference has been modified below 

 
No change 

The District’s Executive Director has delegated 
limited award authority to the District’s 
Manager of Procurement and Contracts. 

The District’s Executive Director/General 
Manager may delegate authority to award 
procurements and contracts below $50,000. 

 
No change, simply updated language 

 
Newly added section The District’s Chief Financial Officer, as the 

Director of Procurement and Contracts, shall 
have the authority to award contracts up to 
$50,000. 

 
Simply named the CFO as the Director 
of Procurement and Contracts and 
appointed a threshold.  

The District’s Manager of Procurement and 
Contracts may award contracts up to $25,000. 

The District’s Manager of Procurement and 
Contracts may award contracts up to $35,000. 

 
Increased the threshold by $10,000 

The District’s Contracts Specialist may award 
contracts up to $10,000. 

The District’s Procurement/ Contracts Supervisor 
may award contracts up to $25,000. 

Added new position and Increased the 
threshold by $15,000 

The District’s Contracts Specialist may award 
contracts up to $10,000. 

The District’s Contracts Specialist may award 
contracts up to $25,000. 

 
Increased the threshold by $15,000 

The District’s Procurement Agent may award 
contracts up to $3,000 

The District’s Procurement Agent may award 
contracts up to $10,000 

 
Increased the threshold by $7,000 

 
18



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #7a 

 
 
Agenda Item: Universal Access Service Agreement with New Beginning 

High School 
 
Presenter: Ben Darby, Esq. 
  
  
Recommended 
Action: Approval 
 
Summary: A renewal to the UAP with New Beginnings 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

19



20



21



22



23



24



Bryant Cohen 1/22/2024

25



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Approval of the Tigertown Express Pilot for Spring 

Training  
 
Presenter: Nicole McCleary, Director of Strategic Planning & 

Innovation 
 
Recommended  
Action: Approval 
 
Program: Citrus Connection will provide express shuttle 

service to Tigertown for six games during spring 
training.  This Pilot program will assist in 
alleviating traffic and parking around the baseball 
stadium.  Patrons will have 4 lots available to them 
for parking (3 Citrus Connection parking lots and 
part of the RP Funding Parking lot).  TA 6 Increase 
internal communication through systemic 
processes. 

  
    
 
   
  
 
  
   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 

26



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #9a 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Special Guest 
 
Presenter: Marcia Roberson, Director 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Special guests from the Commission for the 

Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) in Tallahassee 
visits Polk County March 18-20 2024     

 
 
  
 
 

27



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #10a 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Agency Updates 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Items and information from the General Manager 
 
  
 
 

28



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #11a 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: January calendar 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Review and summary of events taken place in January. 
 
 
  
 
 

29



1 2/9/2024 12:47 PMTom Phillips

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2024
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29

February 2024January 2024

Dec 31 Jan 1, 24 2 3 4 5 6
New Year's Day (United 

States)
8:00am PIN Annual 

Certifications and 
10:00am 1-on-1 w/HR - 

Tom Phillips

9:30am Senior Staff Call 
(https://us02web.zoo

10:00am 1-on-1 
w/Marcia (Tom's 

7:00pm Davenport City 
Commission Meeting 

Copy: Board of Directors, Performance Indicator Data, due CO
9:30am 1-on-1 w/ 

Nicole - Tom Phillips
8:00am Repatha
9:30am 1-on-1 w/Mark -

Tom Phillips
1:30pm GENTS

7 8 9 10 11 12 13
10:00am 1-on-1 w/HR - 

Tom Phillips
8:30am Email Ridership 

Update to LAMTD 
9:30am Canceled: Senior
10:00am 1-on-1 
10:30am 
1:00pm Agenda Study 

8:00am Board Member 
Transition Breakfast 

8:30am LAMTD Jan 
Board Meeting (1212 

9:30am 1-on-1 w/ 
Nicole - Tom Phillips

9:30am 1-on-1 w/Mark -
Tom Phillips

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
10:00am 1-on-1 w/HR - 

Tom Phillips
10:00am 1-on-1 

w/Marcia (Tom's 
office) - Tom Phillips

9:30am 1-on-1 w/ 
Nicole - Tom Phillips

8:00am Repatha
9:30am 1-on-1 w/Mark -

Tom Phillips
12:30pm Chrissanne // 

Tom Lunch 
(Nineteen61, 215 E 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27
8:00am Roadeo Family 

Funday (RP Funding 
Center (701 W Lime 
St, Lakeland, FL 
33815, United States))
- Ella Joseph

10:00am 1-on-1 w/HR - 
Tom Phillips

9:30am Senior Staff Call 
(https://us02web.zoo

10:00am 1-on-1 
10:30am Transit 
11:00am Canceled: 
11:30am Fair Share 

9:30am 1-on-1 w/ 
Nicole - Tom Phillips

10:00am Interview with 
Jeff Van Zant, Bay 

11:15am Lunch @ 
2:00pm Meeting with 

9:30am 1-on-1 w/Mark -
Tom Phillips

10:00am Lunch Squeeze 
Ribbon Cutting 

11:00am Transit 
6:00pm Community 

8:30am Updated 
invitation: 
Infrastructure Team 
Meeting @ Monthly 

3:00pm Meeting w/ Dr. 
Bruce Anderson

28 29 30 31 Feb 1 2 3
10:00am 1-on-1 w/HR - 

Tom Phillips
1:15pm Chrissanne // 

Tom Lunch 
(Nineteen61, 215 E 
Main St, Lakeland, FL 

9:00am Rotary Club in 
Auburndale 

9:30am Canceled: Senior
10:00am 1-on-1 
10:30am 1-on-1 w/ 
3:30pm January LEDC 

9:30am Coffee w/ Intern 
(100 Lake Morton Dr; 
Black & Brew)

11:30am Lunch (Garden 
Bistro (702 E Orange 
St, Lakeland, FL 

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

30



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #11b 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Ridership Report 
 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, General Manager 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: Information only 
 
 
Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 

including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 
Response through October 31, 2022 

  
 
Attachments: Ridership Report. 
  
 
 

31



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 14, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM #12 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Other Business 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: TBD 
 
Summary: TBD 
  
 
 

32



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, January 10th, 2024 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

   
 
 

 
Directors: 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey III 
Polk County Commissioner Martha Santiago 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Sara McCarley 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Guy Lalonde, Jr. 
City of Lakeland Mayor Bill Mutz 

 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips  
Executive Assistant: Ella Joseph 
 
 
 

Call to Order 
8:30 a.m. By Commissioner McCarley 

 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 

a.  Board approval of the December 2023 LAMTD Meeting Minutes  
    
[Attachments available] 

 
 

“Approval of meeting minutes for the December 2023 LAMTD Meeting” 
1st George Lindsey III / 2nd Martha Santiago 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   

 
 
 

Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments  
None 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #3 – Finance / Mark Biddinger, Chief Financial Officer  
 

a. LAMTD Financials  
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 
YTD November 30, 2023 

FY 2023-2024 
(10/01/23 – 09/30/24) 

 
17% of the fiscal year complete 

33



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, January 10th, 2024 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent 
Expended 

Revenue $14,351,547 $958,390 7% 
Expense $14,351,547 $1,915,956 13% 
Surplus/(deficit)                               -                         (957,567)   

 
 
Revenue Highlights: 
 
Ad valorem taxes:  The majority of receipts will be recognized in December 2023 (~ 80%) with the remainder 
coming in monthly for the rest of the fiscal year. 
 
The billing cycles for the FTA and FDOT grants have not yet started. These grants are paid out retrospectively 
after expenses are incurred each quarter. 
 
Interest Income on invested funds is ahead of the budget. 
 
 
Expense highlights 
 
Overall expenses are below budget. Individual expense lines vary due to the cyclical nature of operations 
compared to a linear budget (budgets are reported on a 1/12th basis). 

 
 
CASH POSITION: 
 
As of November 30, 2023, there was ~ 168 days (5.5 months) of operating cash on hand. 
As of December 31, 2023, there was ~ 229 days (7.5 months) of operating cash on hand. 
 
 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL POSITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through November 30th, the financials reflect an 
unfavorable variance of $958k with 17% of the fiscal year completed. 

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  9/30/2022 9/30/2021 9/30/2020 9/30/2019 9/30/2018 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio   11.40% 10.70% 8.50% 10.10% 13.00% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $141.63  $130.01  $117.66  $116.62  $108.42  
3.  Revenue Hours                                           132,260 135,115 146,700 145,405 146,597 
4.  Fuel Cost                                    $1,399,855  $878,132  $744,587  $1,093,793  $1,082,166  
5.  Ridership                                                   653,986 591,937 855,409 1,294,771 1,252,600 

 
 

 
b. PCTS Financials  

 34



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, January 10th, 2024 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

Polk County Transit Services 
Monthly Financial Report 
YTD November 30, 2023 

FY 2023-2024 
(10/01/23 – 09/30/24) 

 
17% of the fiscal year complete 

YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent 
Expended 

Revenue $10,679,408 $3,722,195 35% 
Expense $10,679,408 $1,336,355 13% 

Surplus/(deficit)                               -                         2,385,840   
 
 
 
Revenue Highlights: 
 
Revenues exceed expenses by $2.385M because 100% of the annual county revenue has already been 
received. 
 
The billing cycles for the FTA and FDOT grants have not yet started. These grants are paid out retrospectively 
after expenses are incurred each quarter. 
 
 
 
Expense highlights 
 
Overall expenses are below budget. Individual expense lines vary due to the cyclical nature of operations 
compared to a linear budget (budgets are reported on a 1/12th basis). 

 
 
 
 
 

c. TD Financials  
 

Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
Monthly Financial Report 
YTD November 30, 2023 

FY 2023-2024 
(07/01/23 – 06/30/24) 

 
42% of the fiscal year complete 

YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent 
Expended 

Revenue $1,461,766 $611,353 42% 
Expense $1,461,766 $597,828 41% 
Surplus/(deficit)                               -                              13,525   

35



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, January 10th, 2024 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 
 
Refer to the detailed financial report (attached). Revenues and expenses and tracking with budget 
expectations. There is nothing unusual to report. 

 
 

Agenda Item #4 – Human Resources / Carina Chaitoo, HR Generalist 
 
CBA Article 15 – Safety and Health, the District has agreed that designated Transportation Workers Union 
(TWU) employees from different modes attend the Safety Committee meetings and shall be scheduled on the 
last Wednesday of the month at 10:30am – noon. The purpose of the Safety Committee meeting is to present 
recurring Fleet Post Trip problems and resolution to TWU representatives. The Memorandum of 
Understanding is to modify the Safety Committee Meeting from the last Wednesday of the month at 10:30AM 
to the last Tuesday of the month at 2:30PM. With this schedule change it will provide consistency, allowing 
designated TWU employees to attend the Safety Committee meetings with a conflict of schedule or creating 
undue driver staffing pressure. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item #5 – General Manager Report / Tom Phillips 
 

a. Agenda Updates 
- On behalf of all employees, we thank Dr. Simmons for his time.  
- Thanks to the Finance department, we’ve recovered 96% of the fraud money. 
- Paul Simms: we had a successful Squeeze Lunch. When the weather is below 50, we will use a 

paratransit bus instead of the gold cart. 
- Nicole McCleary:  

o Airport director would like to work with us to get people to the airport and more. 
o Tigerville: big games, express shuttle service from park n ride to the game. 
o Bonnet Spring: trolley service from downtown to bonnet spring in springtime. 
o Special events at Bonnet Spring: working to see what kind of service we can provide to 

people who have to park outside the park and walk 10-15 mns. 
o Lunch Squeeze: 625 riders since the launch 

 Dec: 453 
 Jan: 172 until today  

- Larry Ross will reengage the Employee Engagement Survey remotely 
- We are looking at April’s date for the Board Retreat and Dr. Collins will host 
- March board meeting is cancelled due to quorum. We will tag it to the April Board Meeting 
- Thanks to Ana for the 1095-C forms, saving us $5,000 
- Welcome to Commissioner Lalonde 

 
 

Agenda Item #7 – Other Business 
Julia Davis, TPO:  

- Ryan Cordeck is the Interim Executive Director of the TPO 
- We have 6 open positions in planning 
- TD evaluation process is starting 
- New laws about the transportation plan process 
- Federal Recertification of TPO went well, no findings, thanks to LAMTD 

 36



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, January 10th, 2024 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
 

Adjournment at 9:09 a.m. 
 
 
 
Approved this 14th day of February 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Chair – Lakeland City Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley Minutes Recorder – Ella Joseph 

37


	0- AGENDA
	1a- Approval of LAMTD Minutes
	2- Agenda ITEM  - MLK Award
	3- Agenda ITEM  - GEM Award
	5- Agenda ITEM Board Elections
	6a- LAMTD Agenda item - FS Report for 2023-12Dec
	6a- LAMTD Financial Narrative - 2023-12Dec
	6a- LAMTD Financial Report - 2023-12Dec
	6b- PCTS Agenda item - FS Report for 2023-12Dec
	6b- PCTS Financial Narrative - 2023-12Dec
	6b- PCTS Financial Report - 2023-12Dec
	6c- TD Agenda item - FS Report for 2023-12Dec
	6c- TD Financial Narrative - 2023-12Dec
	6c- TD Financial Report - 2023-12Dec
	6d- Intermodal PM Postion Planned
	6e- Agenda ITEM - Informational - Project Updates
	6f- Procurement policy manual
	1.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS
	1.1 INTRODUCTION
	1.2 PURPOSE AND PRINCIPLE
	1.3 EXCLUSIONS
	1.4 PROCUREMENT AUTHORITY
	1.5 ADVANCED ACQUISITION PLANNING
	1.6 REQUISITIONS

	2.0 PROCUREMENT POLICIES
	2.0
	2.1 PETTY CASH (PURCHASES UNDER $50.00)
	2.2 DIRECT PAYMENTS
	2.3 MICRO-PURCHASES (PURCHASES UP TO $2,500)
	2.4 CAPITAL ASSETS
	2.5 SMALL PURCHASES (PURCHASES $2,500.00 UP TO $35,000)
	2.6 SEALED BID PROCESS “INVITATIONS FOR BID” (IFB) ($35,000.00 AND GREATER)
	2.7 REQUESTS FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) (OVER $35,000)
	2.8 NON-COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENTS (SOLE, SINGLE OR DIRECTED SOURCE)
	2.9 EMERGENCY PURCHASES (AUTHORIZATION AND CRITERIA)
	2.9.1 Authorization:
	2.9.2 Criteria for Emergency Purchases
	2.9.3 Natural Disaster Emergency Purchases

	2.10 PURCHASE CARD PROGRAM (PURPOSE AND REQUIREMENTS)
	2.10.1     Purpose of the Procurement Card Program
	2.10.2     Rules and Requirements
	2.10.3     Spending Limits

	2.11 Procurement of Ancillary Services

	3.0 APPROVAL OF AWARDS, DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
	3.0
	3.1 REJECTION OF BIDS/ PROPOSALS
	3.2 EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS
	3.3 CHANGE ORDERS, MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS

	4.0 PROTEST POLICY
	3.0
	4.0
	4.1 PROTEST
	4.2 SUSPENSION OF THE PROCUREMENT PROCESS
	4.3 RESOLUTION OF PROTEST
	4.4 APPEAL OF DECISION
	4.5 BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	4.5.1 Applicability to Contracts
	4.5.2 References


	5.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS
	5.0
	5.1 DOCUMENTATION FILES
	5.2 CONTRACT AUDIT AND REVIEW

	6.0 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT
	6.0
	6.1 GOVERNANCE

	7.0 CONFIRMATION PURCHASE/ UNAUTHORIZED PURCHASE

	6f- Procurement policy update Agenda Item
	7a- AGENDA Item Agreement New Beginning HSPeace River Center
	7a- New Beginnings HS - Citrus Connection 24 Contract
	8a- Agenda ITEM - Approval of TigerTown Express
	9a- AGENDA Item - Special Guest
	10a- Agenda ITEM - Agency Updates
	11a- Agenda ITEM - Calendar
	11a- Calendar
	11b- Agenda ITEM - Ridership
	12- BOD Agenda ITEM Other business
	1a- Board Minutes Jan 10th, 2024
	Directors:
	Call to Order
	Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	c. TD Financials




